AGENDA FOR
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING
8:00 A.M. DECEMBER 7, 2016
NEUMILLER & BEARDSLEE
509 WEST WEBER AVENUE, FIFTH FLOOR
STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA

Call to Order.
Roll Call.

Agenda ltems.

1. Public Comment. Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public may
address the Board on any issue in the District's jurisdiction. The public may address any
item on the agenda as it is taken up.

2. Approval of Minutes. Minutes of the meeting of October 19, 2016, November 2, 2016,
and November 21, 2016.
3. Financial Report. Review, discuss, and accept financial report.

(@) Approve and accept 2015-2016 Audit.
(b)  Review and Discuss Long Term Budget Planning and Project Expenditure Plan
(c) Discuss Sediment Removal Project and Cost Update.

4. Engineer's Report. Request for directions and approvals.

(a)  Consider new permits requests from homeowners.
(b)  Authorize President to sign Letter of Map Revision Forms.

. Levee Superintendent Report. Request for directions and approvals.

. Newsletter. Approve and authorize mailing of District Fall 2016 Newsletter.

. Emergency Plan. Review of Emergency Procedures.

5
6
7. Email Address. Discuss and give direction regarding District E-mail Address.
8
9

. Report by Trustees on meetings attended and up coming meetings. Request for direction

10.Report and possible action on Progress of Tasks Assigned at Previous Board Meetings.

(@) Review and Update Sediment Removal Project Projected Costs.
(b)  Develop Long term Expenditure Plan
(c) Review Emergency Plan at December meeting.

11. Discussion and direction on Short-Term and Long-Range Goals. Discussion.

12.District Calendar. Discussion and direction.

13.Correspondence.

14. Approval of Bills.

This agenda shall be made available upon request in altemative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Califomia Govemment Code
§54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting
should contact Jean Knight at 209/948-8200 during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the
meeling.

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Trustees after distribution of the agenda packet are available for
public inspection in the office of the District Secretary at Neumiller & Beardslee, 509 W. Weber Avenue, 5th Floor, Stockton,
Califomnia during normal business hours.

1086766-11086766-1



15. Staff Reports.

(a) Attorney. The Agenda for this meeting was posted on the window outside the

meeting room at 509 West Weber Avenue, Stockton, California, at least seventy-two (72)
hours preceding the meeting.

16.Adjournment.

This agenda shall be made available upon request in altemative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Califomia Govemment Code
§54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting

should contact Jean Knight at 209/948-8200 during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the
meeting.

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Trustees after distribution of the agenda packet are available for
public inspection in the office of the District Secretary at Neumiller & Beardslee, 509 W. Weber Avenue, 5th Floor, Stockton,
Califomia during normal business hours.

1086766-11086766-1



AGENDA PACKET
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608
December 7, 2016

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.

16.

1086769-1

COMMENTARY

Self-explanatory.
Please see attached.
Please see attached.
Please see attached.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.
Please see attached.
Please see attached.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.
Self-explanatory.

Self-explanatory.



ITEM 2



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608
HELD WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2016

A Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 was held on October 19,
2016, at the law office of Neumiller & Beardslee, 509 W. Weber Avenue, 5% Floor, Stockton,
California, at the hour of 8:00 a.m.

TRUSTEES PRESENT WERE:

MICHAEL PANZER
DREW MEYERS
BRETT THOLBORN

OTHERS PRESENT WERE:

DANIEL J. SCHROEDER
ANDREW J. PINASCO
CHRIS NEUDECK

JOE BRYSON

RHONDA OLMO
JUDITH BUETHE

ABSENT WAS:
JEAN L. KNIGHT

Item 1. Public Comment.  President Panzer called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m.
No Public Comment.

Item 2. Approval of Minutes. Minutes of the special meetings of August 19, 2016 and September
20.2016. Approved as read.

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. Meyers) and
unanimously carried by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation
District 1608 that the minutes of the special meeting on
August 19, 2016 and September 20, 2016 be approved as
read.

Item 3. Financial Report. Review, discuss, and accept financial report.
The following bills, and warrants in payment of same, were approved: Note: due to no meeting

and/or meeting date change, warrants for the following checks were signed by 2 Trustees on or near
the following dates.

1077633-2



SEPTEMBER 8, 2016

VOID, #5822

JEAN L. KNIGHT, #5823, Secretarial FEE ........covvvuvriireeeeirriineeieeeresteetereseeeeeneeneeneens 690.00
NEUMILLER & BEARDSLEE, #5824, Inv. #279508 .....o.eeeevtrteeeeeeeeeeeseereeeeeeerenens 5,635.27
CROCE & COMPANY, #5825, Inv. #5 2005631 & 2005430 .....c.cvvvereverererrerireeeeaesenes 648.00
PG&E, #5826, ELECIIICAL....ucovevereenirererieiceiecectcsrcis et ssste st sbesbe st e e ssesee st eeeneesennenes 47.56
CROCE, SANGUINETTI & VANDERVEEN, #5827, Inv. #4623 .....oooveeeeeeeeeerereenns 135.00
PAUL E. VAZ TRUCKING, #5828, Underpayment from Warrant #5821 .................... 100.00
KJELDSEN, SINNOCK & NEUDECK, #5829, Inv. #s 19514-19520...................... 29,334.18
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608, #5830, Transfer to Checking..........coeeevevrvennee. 30,000.00
OCTOBER 4, 2016

MICHAEL PANZER, #5831, TrUSLEE FEE ...vvveeiieeeeiieeieeeeertetetesesetseeeeseeeseeeenessaeeneenes 200.00
DREW MEYERS, #5832, TrUSLEE FEE ....cvvivviveieeirriirisieeteieiereeeeeestessesevesseessse st sesaesseens 500.00
BRETT THOLBORN, #5833, TIUSLEE FEE....cceeroeeiereeceeeeeereeeererreereesesessssesssesssssesssenns 100.00
JEAN L. KNIGHT, #5834, Secretarial FEe .......ccouvvivimreeiceciecececreeeseenecreerenes 690.00
NEUMILLER & BEARDSLEE, #5835, InV. #2797 14 ..oouvveeeeeeeeeeeeereecereeeesecsneenes 6,101.04
KJELDSEN, SINNOCK & NEUDECK, #5836, Inv. #s 19043 — 19649 .................. 14,788.66
PG&E, #5837, EIBCLIICAL.c.vcuviuveeeiceiiecccee ettt et sess e sessesses st asbesresbesbassaassonson 18.78
B&R Self Storage, #5838, INV. #186-16/17 .....c.ovveereueiiiereeieiesereeeerenseseneseeseeesnesennes 800.00

Timesheets for the following employees were submitted and checks in payment of same, were
approved:

GABRIEL P. BANKS, #1272, August 1-15, 2016 Semi-Monthly Salary ..........ccccernuu.. 887.50
CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT, #1273,

Income Withholding Order (Gabriel P. Banks) .........cccoeevivrrrinieinrenieseseneencnseceineens 185.62
JOE BRYSON, #1274, Payroll, August Salary ..........ccccevererrriierierevenniinensereserenseans 4,010.39
GABRIEL P. BANKS, #1275, August 16-31, 2016 Semi-Monthly Salary ...........cc....... 644.71
CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT, #1276,

Income Withholding Order (Gabriel P. Banks) .......ccccccuviveeevinenenirnnreneesnenceannens 185.62
GABRIEL P. BANKS, #1277 September 1 -15, 2016 Semi-Monthly Salary................. 746.75
VOID, Check #1278
CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT, #1279,

Income Withholding Order (Gabriel P. Banks) .........cccoceeevennneninevecrennnineeennencnns 185.62
JOE BRYSON, #1280, Payroll, September Salary.........ccccceeovvcrernenirenciininniiniiinnn 3,508.49
GABRIEL P. BANKS, #1281, September 16-30, 2016 Semi-Monthly Salary............... 400.80
CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT, #1282,

Income Withholding Order (Gabriel P. Banks) .......cccocevuevinievenneenenecceecennnieniieeens 185.62

State and Federal Payroll Taxes scheduled to be paid on line, were approved

State Government, Payroll Taxes, August Salary.........cocovvvricecvniniininiiniinnenennene. 393.05

Federal Government, Payroll Taxes, August Salary .........c.cocveviiniiniennininnneinnen 2,368.70

State Government, Payroll Taxes, September Salary .........coovveviiiiiiiinnniniininiienne 432.02

Federal Government, Payroll Taxes, September Salary ..........cccoevievniinieneniniienninens 2,468.78
2

1077633-2



Mr. Dan Schroeder presented two financial reports (August & September 2016). With regard to the
August report, he stated that he did not understand why the payroll taxes and expenses were already
over budget (he will speak with Ms. Knight). Under General Engineering it shows that 82% is
already booked to date. Mr. Neudeck stated that this is carryover from the Letter of Map Revision
and that it was a one-time expense. On the income side, Mr. Schroeder said that there was very little
activity as assessment money and property taxes will not be seen until January/May 2017. A line
item was added to the report for the District’s bank account. For the September Financial Report,
Mr. Schroeder noted that he will discuss the payroll taxes and expenses with Ms. Knight.

Upon motion duly made seconded (B. Tholborn/D. Meyers) and
unanimously carried, the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608
approved the August and September Financial Reports.

(a) Ratify CSV Financial Transaction Report Agreement.

Mr. Schroeder stated that this report came in last June and was not executed. Since this is a fairly
routine administrative document and the audit agreement was previously approved authorizing Dr.
Panzer to sign it, Mr. Schroeder is seeking ratification.

Upon motion duly made seconded (B. Tholborn/D. Meyers) and
unanimously carried, the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608
ratified and approved the execution of the CSV Financial Transaction
Report Agreement.

(b) Review and Discuss Long Term Budget Planning and Project Expenditure Plan

Because of an earlier reported conflict of interest determined by the California Attorney General’s
Office with Mr. Tholborn, Mr. Schroeder instructed that no sediment removal project be discussed
during this item.

Mr. Chris Neudeck and Mr. Schroeder gave a presentation on the draft 20-year projected income and
expenses for RD 1608 on the overhead projector screen. This information can be found under Tab D
of the Engineers Report. Mr. Neudeck encouraged the Trustees to further review the draft scenarios.
He will send the Trustees the excel spreadsheet to give them the opportunity to play with the
numbers themselves. This item will be on the next Agenda to further delve into this material to
address all questions and comments.

c) Discuss Sediment Removal Project and Cost Update.

8:40 a.m. - Mr. Tholborn excused himself from the meeting. Mr. Neudeck referred to the previous
presentation and stated that he and Mr. Schroeder had also evaluated the costs associated with the
Sediment Removal Project. He stated that they did quite a bit of analysis. Mr. Neudeck said the
prior Districts Engineer worked with KSN in development of the baseline plans and specifications.
Per Mr. Neudeck, the Engineers approach was wise but not necessarily peer reviewed. Mr. Neudeck
does not want to follow that path and wants to make sure that what is suggested to the Board is still
feasible. He contacted a resident expert in dredging and they had a number of discussions. He said
that when you dredge you have to consider whether you go within the confines of what is called a
general or individual permit. Mr. Neudeck discussed these permits with the Trustees. He believes he

3

1077633-2



can operate under the general permit. Discussion was held. The full spreadsheet delineation will be
emailed to the Board Members so they can digest the report. This item will also be on the next
Agenda for further discussion.

Mr. Tholborn returned to the meeting at 9:10 a.m.

Item 4. Engineer’s Report. Request for directions and approvals.

(a) Consider new permits requests from homeowners.
@) 6207 Embarcadero Drive, Juan P. and B.L. Delgado, Index No. 16 Lot 1914,
APN 098-340-01, Review request and seek Board of Trustees approval to install
artificial turf on landside slope of the levee and install 2 X 12” header boards.

(b) Discussion and possible action regarding City of Stockton Storm Water Pumping
Pipe Incident.

(c) FEMA Mapping Status.

(d) Ratify Letter of Support for Round 2 Delta funding.

From Engineers Report:

L. PLAN REVIEW

A. Current permit requests from homeowners:

a. 6207 Embarcadero Drive
Juan P. & B. L. Delgado
Josh Borges General Contractor
(209) 957-7336
Index No. 16 Lot 1914
APN 098-340-01

Review request and seek Board of Trustees approval to install artificial turf on
landside slope of the levee and install 2” x 12” header boards.

KSN Inc. recommends approval of this application with the following condition(s):
The landowner must keep vegetation on the levee landside slope trimmed up to allow
inspection of levee slopes at all times throughout the year.

Exhibit A: Delgado’s Application for Approval of Plans and/or Encroachment
Permit.

Exhibit B: Levee Inspection Report December 20135.

Exhibit C: Photograph’s of the existing landside slope condition and backyard.
Mr. Neudeck stated that this is a fairly simple and straightforward request to place artificial turf on
the landside of the levee and remove rocks, trim up the bushes, and clean up the slope. He referred to
the pictures in Exhibit B (some include work previously approved on the waterside of their levee).

Mr. Neudeck is fine with this and feels the element of having surficial type treatment such as this is
preferred. Mr. Neudeck and Mr. Bryson recommend approval.

1077633-2



After review,

Upon motion duly made seconded (D. Meyers/B. Tholborn) and
unanimously carried, the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608
approved the permit with the conditions as stated above.

IL. DELTA LEVEE SUBVENTIONS PROGRAM AB 360

A. Review the status of the City of Stockton’s stormwater discharge pipe replacement
through levee from the North Lake system.

As stated at previous Board meetings by Mr. Neudeck, last summer there was a condition where the
levee was eroded away by the failure of the City’s stormwater discharge pipe. Mr. Neudeck
permitted them to repair the pipe that failed together with conditions that they also recoat the
additional two discharge pipes. They have completed the new pipe and coated everything. However,
due to weather conditions they were not able to complete the other two. They plan to continue the
end of this week. Per Mr. Neudeck, this in on track.

1L SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY HYACINTH REMOVAL

A. Review the status of SJCo’s Hyacinth Removal Project from 5 Mile Slough at the
east end near I-5.

Mr. Neudeck said that the hyacinth removal is complete and satisfactory to his conditions.
IV.  SEDIMENT REMOVAL PROJECT

A. Review with the Board of Trustees the task and scope that needs to be evaluated in
order to provide a reliable project estimate. Discuss project design elements and our
plan to work with Legal Counsel to evaluate District reserves and budgetary
constraints.

Exhibit C: 20 Year projected Income & Expense for RD 1608 without Delta Levee
Subvention reimbursements after Subventions sunset in Fiscal Year 2017-2018.

Exhibit D: 20 Year projected Income & Expense for RD 1608 with Delta Levee Subvention
reimbursements after Subventions sunset in Fiscal Year 2017-2018.

Presentation of 20 Year projected Income & Expense for RD 1608 on the overhead
projector screen.

See item 3c.
V. FEMA MAPPING STATUS
A. Review ongoing status and progress of preparation of the Letter of Map Revision

(LOMR) application for District’s response to FEMA regarding the mapping status of
the District’s levee system. Review status of signature on MT-2 form from the City

of Stockton from our August 26" submittal.

5

1077633-2



Yesterday, Mr. Neudeck learned that the City has a concern relative to signing the MT-2 form
because of an issue related to CEQA compliance. Mr. Neudeck said FEMA was sued five years ago
for issuing these Letters of Conditional Map Revisions and for not verifying if CEQA compliance
had occurred in California. He said that the form relates to that but that it also states that if there is
no projected work and is just a study that it does not apply. The City of Stockton wants a statement
from Mr. Neudeck that there is no projected work. Mr. Neudeck will work with Mr. Schroeder to
have this statement prepared indicating that this is a study of existing condition and that there is no
anticipated work as a result of this plan.

Agenda Item 4d. Ratify Letter of Support for Round 2 Delta funding.

Mr. Neudeck said this is related to the Round 2 Emergency Response Delta Funding that is being
applied for by San Joaquin County OES (Mike Cockrell). Mr. Cockrell is seeking to develop a
revenue stream by which he can place in each Reclamation District within San Joaquin County pre-
outfitted containers with all flood fight supplies. He is also putting together a training program. If
the application is approved, he will pay the Districts to train their Executive Boards. Mr. Cockrell is
seeking RD 1608 to endorse his application for the funds.

Mr. Schroeder stated that there was a timing issue with this. A decision was made not to hold a
Special Meeting as there was no liability to the District in doing this. It also benefits the District in
that if the funds do materialize that it will provide materials to the District. President Panzer has
signed the letter and a motion to ratify is needed.

After review,

Upon motion duly made seconded (D. Meyers/B. Tholborn) and
unanimously carried, the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608
ratified and approved the signing of the Letter of Support for Round 2
funding.

Item 5. Subventions Agreement. Adopt Resolution 2016-05 Approving And Authorizing

Execution Of Delta Levee Maintenance Subventions Program Work Agreement Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

Mr. Schroeder said that this Agreement arrived earlier this year than in the past. This is for this fiscal
year’s Subventions Program. Barring any questions Mr. Schroeder recommended adoption. No
questions were presented.

After review,

Upon motion duly made seconded (B. Tholborn/D. Meyers) and
unanimously carried, the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 adopt
Resolution 2016-05 Approving and Authorizing Execution of Delta
Levee Maintenance Subventions Program Work Agreement Fiscal
Year 2016-2017and authorized the President to sign.

Item 6. CEQA Exemption. Adopt Resolution 2016-06 Authorizing And Directing Filing Of Notice
Of Exemption For Routine Maintenance. For Fiscal Year 2016-2017

6

1077633-2



Mr. Schroeder stated that is a companion to Item 5 above. In order to comply with CEQA
requirements, a Notice of Exemption will need to be posted that the work that is being done is for
maintenance and does not fall within the definition of a project.

After review,

Upon motion duly made seconded (B. Tholborn/D. Meyers) and
unanimously carried, the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 adopt
Resolution 2016-06 Authorizing and Directing Filing Of Notice of
Exemption For Routine Maintenance For Fiscal Year 2016-2017
setting forth that this is an exempt activity and authorizing the District
Engineer to post the appropriate Notice.

Item 7. Levee Superintendent Report. Request for directions and approvals. Mr. Bryson went
through the Superintendent’s Report. Discussion was held.

On item 1 — Caltrans put the rock in and built a new fence and gate. Mr. Bryson promised the
homeowner he would secure the gate.

On item 2 — Caltrans brought rock in.

On item 7 — Mr. Neudeck stated that this may have been caused by the condition of PG&E’s high
voltage power line that runs down the levee. Mr. Neudeck instructed Mr. Bryson to
excavate/recompact and put in some good soil. This is a shrinkage crack.

On item 14 — Mr. Schroeder stated there may be an opportunity to obtain an Easement.

On item 21 — Mr. Bryson’s personal tools were taken. He will work with Jean Knight to see what
else is missing.

On item 23 — Mr. Neudeck instructed Mr. Bryson to state that if the plants are not out within a week
that the District will remove them.

On item 25 — Mr. Schroeder said that a letter could be prepared advising what can and what can’t be
done. It could instruct the homeowners to expect a visit from Mr. Bryson seeking the information
needed. This could also be incorporated into the next Newsletter.

Item 8. Newsletter. Discuss fall District newsletter.

Judith Buethe will confirm contact information she has with homeowners. Suggestions were given to
Ms. Buethe as to what could be incorporated into the next Newsletter. Ideas: Emergency Plan is now
online, report to Mr. Bryson any unusual activity on the levee, highlight District website, lawn
chairs/barbecues/storage issues. Ms. Buethe will prepare a draft and present it at the next meeting.

Item 9. Report by Trustees on meetings attended and upcoming meetings. Request for direction
Mr. Schroeder, Mr. Neudeck and Mr. Meyers will attend the TAC meeting this afternoon.

1077633-2



Item 10. Report and possible action on Progress of Tasks Assigned at Previous Board
Meetings.

(a) Review and Update Sediment Removal Project Projected Costs.
(b) Develop Long term Expenditure Plan.

Both items will have continued discussions and will be placed on the November Agenda.

Item 11. Discussion and direction on Short-Term and Long-Range Goals. Discussion. None

Item 12. District Calendar. Discussion and direction. Next Regular meeting will be on November
2,2016 at 8:00 a.m,

Item 13. Correspondence. Letter dated September 9, 2016 from San Joaquin County re Public
Auction Notice — November 16, 2016.

Item 14. Approval of Bills. The bills were approved as presented.

Item 15. Staff Reports.

(a) Attorney. The Agenda for this meeting was posted on the window outside the meeting
room at 509 West Weber Avenue, Stockton, California, at least seventy-two (72) hours preceding
the meeting.

Item 16. Adjournment. — The meeting adjourned at 10:10 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lhinde L O

Rhonda L. Olmo
Acting District Secretary

1077633-2



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608
HELD WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2016

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 was held on
Wednesday, November 2, 2016, at the law office of Neumiller & Beardslee, 509 W. Weber
Avenue, 5™ Floor, Stockton, California, at the hour of 8:00 a.m.

TRUSTEES PRESENT WERE:

MICHAEL PANZER
DREW MEYERS

OTHERS PRESENT WERE:

DANIEL J. SCHROEDER
ANDREW J. PINASCO
CHRIS NEUDECK

JOE BRYSON

JEAN L. KNIGHT
PAULINE SANGUINETTI
DONNIE HERNANDEZ
JUDITH BUETHE

ABSENT WAS:

BRETT THOLBORN

Item 1. Public Comment. President Panzer called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. Trustees
Panzer and Meyers were present and Trustee Tholborn was absent. There was no public

comment.

Item 2. Approval of Minutes. Minutes of the special meetings of October 19, 2016. The
minutes, prepared by acting Secretary Olmo, were not available.

Item 3. Financial Report. Review, discuss, and accept financial report. Secretary Knight
reported the financial report was not available. She noted that the warrants and financial report
will be prepared and processed at a later date because of her absence on vacation just prior to this
meeting. The warrant details and financial report will be presented at the December meeting.

(a)  Audit Review. Accountants Pauline Sanguinetti and Donnie Hernandez from the
Accounting Firm of Croce, Sanguinetti & VanderVeen were present at the request
of Trustee Meyers. They were at the meeting to explain the recent audit just
completed in draft form and recently distributed for review. She went through the
auditor report and noted that the required Special Districts Transaction Report
was to be forwarded to State along with a Local Government Compensation

1081426-1



(b)

©

1081426-1

Report which lists the compensation of employees and trustees along with the
required audit report. She noted that there were no material misstatements to the
District’s financial statements and no material adjustments. The auditors
reviewed cash receipts and cash adjustments and have issued a clean opinion.
Pages 3 and 4 on the audit are prepared with a government wide basis of
accounting. In reviewing balances in accounts to the District’s financial report
and the audit, there appears to be a discrepancy of about $22,000. This will be
reviewed. The draft audit report distributed will be reviewed by staff and
Trustees and it was asked that results of the draft reviews be brought back to the
next meeting.

Review and Discuss Long Term Budget Planning and Project Expenditure
Plan. Chris Neudeck presented via the overhead projector, a 2016-2026 Fiscal
Year Budget Worksheet (Exhibits A and B) and discussed the material presented
in this Excel worksheet. Exhibit A gives the 20 Year projected Income and
Expenses for the District for completing the sediment removal project up to Grupe
Park for an estimated cost of $1,972,800 and Exhibit B gives the 20 Year
projected Income and Expenses for the District for completing the sediment
Removal Project up to the District Boundary on Fourteen Mile Slough with an
estimated cost of $2,800,000. Mr. Neudeck said that these spreadsheets need to
be reviewed by the accountants. The work would start in 2017-2018 and the
environmental work would be done in 2018-2019. There is the unknown of
whether the levee subventions monies will remain the same and the footnote of
the spreadsheet notes that the program, AB360, sunsets in Fiscal Year 2017-2018
and currently there is no guarantee that this program will be continued. It also
said it is very likely that some form of the Program will continue and for
budgetary purposes the engineers have shown the program continuing on through
the end of this budget limit at the same cost sharing rations that are currently in
place. It appears that as the spreadsheet is presented, the sentiment removal
program would work up to Grupe Park and would include an increase in the
assessment by 10% and a 2% escalator, if the levee subventions program would
continue in the same form of Program. The expense of Exhibit B, extending the
sediment removal program to the District Boundary on Fourteen Mile Slough
would be too expensive for the District at the time of this review.

As stated above, it is important for the accountants to look at these numbers. As
noted, the current assessment sunsets in 2026 and another assessment election
would need to take place. There are also contingencies in place to have this done
early enough so that if the assessment does not pass, it can be reviewed and a
revised assessment presented to the landowners.

It was decided that there needed to be a meeting scheduled between Drew
Meyers, Dan Schroeder, Chris Neudeck and Joe Bryson to go over all the figures
presented. This will be scheduled after this meeting takes place.

Discuss Sediment Removal Project and Cost Update. See above.



Item 4. Engineer’s Report. Request for directions and approvals.

Referring to the Engineer’s Report, A., under Delta Levee Subventions Program AB370, Mr.
Neudeck noted that the reimbursement for this 2015-2016 year will be close to $150,000.

On item B., Mr. Neudeck reported that the City of Stockton’s storm water discharge pipe
placement through the levee from the North Lake system looks good. He was pleased with the
City of Stockton and said “It is a done deal.” He noted it worked out well.

On III., FEMA Mapping Status, Mr. Neudeck said he is still waiting on the letter from FEMA so
he can include it in the submittal.

(@)  Consider new permits requests from homeowners. — None.

Item 5. Levee Superintendent Report. Request for directions and approvals. Mr. Bryson
went through the levee superintendent report. On item 8, the letter to the Marina needs to go

through engineers. Discard item 11. Regarding item 13 about the dead fish on File Mile Slough
in front the Fourteen Mile at the Weir, Mr. Neudeck said to stay clear of this as the District has
no jurisdiction over this issue. Mr. Bryson reported that Lonnie Lobosco, the Superintendent
from RD1614, is going to teach him a few things about the pump station.

Item 6. Newsletter. Discuss fall District newsletter. Judith Buethe presented the draft
newsletter. She is going to get a picture, for this issue of the newsletter, showing Joe Bryson and
Gabriel Banks working on the levee. Trustees and staff went over the other paragraphs and
articles and edits were suggested. Ms. Buethe will update the newsletter and sent to staff and
trustees for review and finalization.

Item 7. Report by Trustees on meetings attended and upcoming meetings. Request for
direction. Drew Meyers attended the TAC meeting. Update to central Valley Flood Protection
Plan coming out later this year. He and Chris Neudeck gave updates at the meeting.

Item 8. Report and possible action on Progress of Tasks Assigned at Previous Board
Meetings.

(a) Review and Update Sediment Removal Project Projected Costs. Discussed
earlier in meeting.

(b)  Develop Long term Expenditure Plan. Discussed above.
(c) Review Emergency Plan at December meeting. Calendared for December. Do
the Trustees want to do? It was noted that the District needs an updated power point for

the emergency plan since the plan has changed. This will be put onto the December
meeting agenda.

1081426-1



Item 9. Discussion and direction on Short-Term and Long-Range Goals. Discussion.
None.

Item 10. District Calendar. Discussion and direction. None.

Item 11. Correspondence. None.

Item 12. Approval of Bills. No bills were presented to Trustees but warrants will be prepared
based on invoices received. Details of the warrants will be listed in the December minutes.

Item 13. Staff Reports.

(a) Attorney. The Agenda for this meeting was posted on the window outside the
meeting room at 509 West Weber Avenue, Stockton, California, at least seventy-two (72)
hours preceding the meeting.

Item 14. Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned.

Respestfully submitted,

1081426-1



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608
HELD MONDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2016

A Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 was held Monday,
November 21, 2016, at the law office of Neumiller & Beardslee, 509 W. Weber Avenue, 5t
Floor, Stockton, California, at the hour of 12:00 p.m.

TRUSTEES PRESENT WERE:

MICHAEL PANZER
BRETT THOLBONR

OTHERS PRESENT WERE:

ANDY PINASCO
JEAN KNIGHT

ABSENT WERE:

DREW MEYERS
DANIEL J. SCHROEDER
CHRIS NEUDECK

JOE BRYSON

Item 1. Public Comment. No public comment.

Item 2. Insurance. Approve authorization of Insurance Proposal. Staff recommends joining
Mutual Water Companies Joint Powers Risk and Insurance Management Authority Insurance
Proposal and execute Amended Joint Powers Agreement. Andy Pinasco presented this item. He
noted that the insurance being proposed is similar to the Water Plus plan (currently in place) but
has higher limits and lower costs. Those who sign up will have an initial three year commitment
and to cancel the policy, the insured must give a six month notice. The only event that could
cause an insured to cancel without this six month notice would be if the insurance rates rise 15%.
The policy will cost $2,503.00 from December 1¥ until April 1,2017. The annual premium will
then be $7,316.00 for the year. The premium for the Water Plus plan would be $8,630.00.
Attorney Pinaso sees no down side except the 3 year commitment. In looking at the coverages,
most are higher than those with the Water Plus and it was also noted this plan includes the auto
policy and the embezzlement coverage for check signing by the District secretary only (as was
previously covered in the Water Plus policy). Per review of the proposal, it appears that those
public agencies having the opportunity to join this Joint Powers plan include water, irrigation,
and reclamation districts. After discussion,

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/M. Panzer) and unanimously carried by the
Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 that the District authorize the

1085039-1



joining of the Mutual Water Companies Joint Powers Risk and Insurance
Management Authority and execute the Amended Joint Powers Agreement.

Item 3. Staff Reports. (a) Attorney. The Agenda for this meeting was posted on the window
outside the meeting room at 509 West Weber Avenue, Stockton, California, at least twenty-four

(24) hours preceding the meeting.

Item 4. Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

1085039-1



ITEM 3

111111111





















Reclamation District No. 1608

| Special Districts Financial Transactions Report I

Detailed Summary of Footnotes For Fiscal Year 2015-16

Forms Column Additional Details Footnotes

Non-Enterprise Revenues,
Expenditures, Sources and Uses

Interest Income A ACTIVITY_CODE = Increase in interest income
‘Land Reclamation and is due to a larger balance
Levee Maintenance’ maintained during the year
in the special projects
county fund.
Services and Supplies A ACTIVITY_CODE = Increase due to an increase
‘Land Reclamation and in engineering and repairs
Levee Maintenance' and maintenance expenses.

Footnotes Page 1 10/26/2016



Reclamatlon Dlstnct No. 1608

Revenues, Expenditures, Sources and Uses A

Fiscal Year 2016

Non-Enterprise Activity

Taxes and Assessments

Current Secured and UnSecured (1%)
Voter Approved Taxes

Property Assessments

Special Assessments (Mello/Roos, Mark/Roos

Prior Year Taxes and Assessmernts

Penalties and Cost on Delinquent Taxes
and Assessments

Licenses, Permits, and Franchises
Fines, Forfeits, and Penaities

Revenue From Use of Money and Property

Interest Income

Rents, Concessions and Royalties
Federal

Aid for Construction

Other Federal

State
Aid for Construction
State Water Project

Homeowners Property Tax Relief
Timber Yield

Other State

Other Governmental Agencies
Redevelopment Pass-Through

Other

Charges for Current Services
Contributions From Property Owners

Self Insurance Only
Member Contributions

Claim Adjustments
Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Salarles and Wages

Empiloyee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Self Insurance Only - Claims Paid

Revenues, Expenditures, Sources and Uses

General and
Special Revenue
Funds

A

Debt Service
Funds

Capital Projects
Funds

c

Land Rectamation and Levee Maintenance

192,745 |

306,280

._

e

I 1]

[ ]
[ ]

] $500.778 |

521,002

$0

Page 1

$0

10/26/2016



Fiscal Year 2016

Contributions to Cutside Agencies

Debt Service
Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Interest on Short-Term Notes and Warrants

Fixed Assets
Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Financing Sources and Uses
Proceeds of Long-Term Debt
Proceeds of Refunding Debt

Payments to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent

Inception of Lease Purchase Agreements

Other Financing Sources

Other Financing Uses

Operating Transfers In (Intra-District)

Operating Transfers Out (Intra-District)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues/Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures/Uses

Fund Equity, Beginning of Period
Prior Period Adjustments
Residual Equity Transfers
Other

Fund Equity, End of Period

Revenues, Expenditures, Sources and Uses

- Reclamation District No. 160 A : :
Speclal Distncts Fmanclal Transactions Report Non-Enterprise Actlvity

Revenues, Expendltures, Sources and Uses

General and Debt Service
Special Revenue Funds
Funds

A B

Capital Projects

Funds

| |
| |
| |
| |
I !

$590.742 | 80 |

$0

(880.964) | S0 ]

$0

I I I |
I I | ]
I | | |
I I I ]
] $0 | 80 | $0
] ($80.984) } $0 | $0
| $1.892.601 | 0 | $0
I | I |
I I I |
I | I il
| $1.811.837 | $0 | $0
Page 2 10/26/2016



- e v Reclamatlon Distnct No. 1608 _ -
T Specnal Districts Financial Transactions Report’
- Consolidation of Fund Equities and Transfers. -
Consolidation of Fund Equities and Transfers

Fiscal Year 2016
General and Debt Service Capital Projects Enterprise Funds
Special Revenue Funds Funds
Funds
Consolidation of Fund Equities
Non-Enterprise Activities | $1.811.637 | $0 | $0
Enterprise Fund Equities
Airport I so
Electric r———_-ﬁ;-
Harbor and Port r""—-'?o—'
Hospital f——"'——s-o_
Waste Disposal r_—_ﬁ-
Water r_-_—%-.
Total Ending Fund Equities | $1.811.637 | $0 } 80 j $0
Transfers In Transfers Out Net
A B C

Consolidation of Transfers In and Transfer Out

General and Special Revenue Funds | g0 | $0

Debt Service Funds | so | $0

Capital Projects Funds | so J $0

Enterprise Activities

Airport 1 s0 ] $0

Electric I S0 | $0

Harbor and Port i $0 $0

Waste Disposal | so | $0

Water i so | $0

Total i $0 | $0 | $0

Consolidation of Fund Equities and Transfers Page 1 10/26/2016



Supplement to the Annual Report of Special Districts

Special District ID Number: 12263911400
Name of District: Reclamation District No. 1608

Mark the appropriate box below to indicate the ending date of your agency’s fiscal year. Report
data for that period only.

July 2015 October 2015 January 2016 April 2016
August 2015 November 2015 February 2016 May 2016
September 2015 December 2015 March 2016 v June 2016

Return this form to the California State Controller’s Office. If you have any questions regarding
this form, please contact:

U.S. Bureau of the Census, 1-800-242-4523

A. Personnel Expenditures

Please report your government's total expenditures for salaries and wages during the year,
including amounts paid on force account construction projects.

1200: [ $ 69,740

B. Capital Outlay Expenditures for Enterprise Activities

Please report your government's capital outlay expenditures for the following enterprise activities,
if applicable:

Airport Enterprise Amount

Land and Equipment (Census Code GO01) 3 0
Construction (Census Code FO1) $ 0
Electric Enterprise Amount

Land and Equipment (Census Code G92) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F92) $ 0
Harbor and Port Enterprise Amount
Land and Equipment (Census Code G87) b 0
Construction (Census Code F87) $ 0
Hospital Enterprise Amount
Land and Equipment (Census Code G36) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F36) $ 0
Waste Disposal Enterprise Amount
Land and Equipment (Census Code G81) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F81) $ 0
Water Enterprise Amount

Land and Equipment (Census Code G91) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F91) $ 0

U.S. Bureau of the Census - Revised 01/2007












Supplement to the Annual Report of Special Districts

Special District ID Number: 12263911400
Name of District: Reclamation District No. 1608

Mark the appropriate box below to indicate the ending date of your agency’s fiscal year. Report
data for that period only.

July 2015 October 2015 January 2016 April 2016
August 2015 November 2015 February 2016 May 2016
September 2015 December 2015 March 2016 v’ June 2016

Return this form to the California State Controller’s Office. If you have any questions regarding
this form, please contact:

U.S. Bureau of the Census, 1-800-242-4523
A. Personnel Expenditures

Please report your government's total expenditures for salaries and wages during the year,
including amounts paid on force account construction projects.

|ZOO: | § 69,740

B. Capital Outlay Expenditures for Enterprise Activities

Please report your government's capital outlay expenditures for the following enterprise activities,
if applicable:

Airport Enterprise Amount

Land and Equipment (Census Code G01) $ 0
Construction (Census Code FOI1) $ 0
Electric Enterprise Amount

Land and Equipment (Census Code G92) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F92) $ 0
Harbor and Port Enterprise Amount
Land and Equipment (Census Code G87) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F87) $ 0
Hospital Enterprise Amount
Land and Equipment (Census Code G36) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F36) $ 0
Waste Disposal Enterprise Amount
Land and Equipment (Census Code G81) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F81) $ 0
Water Enterprise Amount

Land and Equipment (Census Code G91) $ 0
Construction (Census Code F91) $ 0

U.S. Bureau of the Census - Revised 01/2007









CONTENTS
Independent Auditors’ Report

Basic Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the !
Statement of Net Position N

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Exlﬁendifﬁfes and Changes in
Fund Balance - Governmental Fundss_vto the Statement of Activities

Notes to Financial Statements.. RN i
Required Supplemental Infqrmaﬁon

Statement of Revenues, Bxpendltures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual Governmental Funds

Notes to Reqmred Supplemental Information

16

17



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Trustees
Reclamation District No. 1608

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental. activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Reclamation District No. 1608 (the
District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the related notes tothe financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. '

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Stateme;;'ts'

EEN N
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance. of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. :

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an. oplmon on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with audltmg standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance. about;Wh'ether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves. perforrmng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, 1nclud1ng the ‘assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Reclamation District No. 1608 as of June 30, 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

The District has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an-appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basw ﬁnanclal statements is not
affected by this missing information. i >

Y ,\‘

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United. States of Amenca require that the
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund> balance - budget and actual -
governmental funds on pages 16 through 17 be presented to- supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,; ‘who con51ders it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial. statements in an appropriate operational,

economic, or historical context. We have applled certain hmlted procedures to the requn'ed
supplemental information in accordance with audltmg standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which con51sted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparmg the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic: financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information. because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

5

CROCE, SANGUINETTI & VANDER VEEN, INC.
Certified Public Accountants

Stockton, California
October 25, 2016



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
State assistance receivable - subventions
Prepaid insurance
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $72,399

Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted h

Total net positibn

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

3

Governmental
activities

$ 1,820,059
213,758
- 3,406

L 35421

" 2,072,644

S

4,918

6.910

11,828

35,421
2,025.395

§ 2060816



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Program

revenues

Operating

grants and

Expenses contributions

Governmental activities ‘.
Operations $ 598703 $ 144223

Net program (expenses) revenues
General revenues A R
Assessments o
Property taxes ;
Interest N
Total general revenues
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

4

Net (expenses)
revenues and
changes in net
position

$ " (454.480)
T (454.480)

306,280
194,588

8910

— 509,778
55,298

2,005,518

§ 2060816



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016

Assets
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid insurance

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities
Total liabilities

Fund balance
Nonspendable:

Prepaid insurance o
Assigned to emergency repair projects
Assigned to capital improvement.
Unassigned {

Total fund balance,

Total liabﬁij’itiesj and fv'u\nd. balance

.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

5

General Fund

$ 1,820,059

— 3406

$ 4918

6910

11,828

3,406
900,000
500,000

408231

1,811.637

$ 1,823.465



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

Total fund balance - governmental funds $ 1,811,637

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different from those reported in the governmental
funds because of the following:

State assistance receivable are not available to pay current period -
expenditures and, therefore, not reported in the govemmental\ S
funds balance sheet. ST 213,758

Capital assets used in governmental activities are,"ﬁbt ‘cdi‘renff‘;.
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in_ the

governmental funds balance sheet.

Capital assets $ 1 07,820

Less accumulated depreciation | 1‘7‘2,399)
8§ 35421 35.421
Net position of governmental activities $ 2,060,816

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

6



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2016

General fund
Revenues
Assessments $ 306,280
Property taxes ) 194,588
Interest Lﬁ}f':f’ 8.910
Total revenues e 509,778
Expenditures J—
Engineering B 247,873
Repairs and maintenance PO o 117,201
Salaries and wages/auto allowance Dy 69,740
Legal and accounting fees 1‘”?\’:\\ L 43,941
Levee repairs and maintenance N Ci 25,319
Special projects N " 18,114
Weed control o 16,560
Insurance T 14,388
Public relations e 9,373
Secretary fees S T 7,620
Payroll taxes ao b 7,174
Trustee fees N 4,600
County tax administration =~~~ 3,674
County office expense . - ' 3,330
Office expense =~ 862
Storage o 800
Utilities .. -~ 138
Miscellaneous .- b 35
Total expenditures 590,742
Net change in fund balance (80,964)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,892,601
Fund balance, end of year $ 1811637

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

7



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Net change in fund balance - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds
until such time as they are considered a current financial: -

resource.

Depreciation expense related to capital assets is recognized in thé
statement of activities, but is not reported in the funds. \ i

Change in net position of governmental activities: £

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

8

$  (80,964)

144,223



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of Reclamation District No. 1608 (the
District) is presented to assist in understanding the District’s financial statements.

Description of the reporting entity

The District was formed in 1914 under Section 50000 et. seq. of D1v1s10n 15 of the California
State Water Code to provide drainage, irrigation and complete reclamation’ of. lands within
District boundaries. It is governed by a three-member board of trustees each elected by the
landowners to a four-year term. o

District management considered all potential component units for inclusion in the reporting
entity by applying the criteria set forth in accounting pnnmplem generally accepted in the
United States of America. The District concluded that there are no potential component units
which should be included in the reporting entity.

Government-wide financial statements 5 Thy

The government-wide financial statements (i.“‘e.,: the;;Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the activity of the primary government.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specrﬁc function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges
paid by the recipients of goods .or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and
contributions that ‘are Trestricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular functlon or segment. Taxes, assessments, and other receipts not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues.

Fund ﬁnanctal statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds. The District
has one type of fund (governmental), which is comprised of one major fund as follows:

General fund - This fund is established to account for resources devoted to financing the
general services that the District performs. Property taxes, assessments and other sources
of revenue used to finance the fundamental operations of the District are included in this
fund. This fund is charged with all costs of operating the District for which a separate
fund has not been established.

(Continued)

9



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are:recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. ,

. T ’):

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are consxdered to, be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereaﬁer to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenués to-be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal penod and apply to the current fiscal
period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund: hablhty is incurred, except for
principal and interest on long-term debt, which are recogmzed as expenditures to the extent that
they have matured. , 2

Assessments and state assistance are considei'ed ‘to-be susceptible to accrual and, therefore,
have been recognized as revenues provided they were collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the Dlstnct :

Budgetary accounting

The District does not adopt an appropnated budget and is not required to adopt such a budget
by law. However, the' District does adopt a non-appropriated budget annually, which is
approved by the Boa;d of Trustees

Cash and. qash equivalents

For the purp'ose'_ o_f financial reporting “cash and cash equivalents” includes all demand and
savings accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Capital assets

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical
cost is not available. The District’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding
certain minimum thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years. The District has
elected not to retroactively capitalize infrastructure capital assets acquired prior to July 1,
2003, as allowed by GASB Statement No. 34.

(Continued)

10



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated
over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation has been provided on capital assets and is
charged as an expense against operations each year. The total amount of depreciation taken
over the years is reported on the balance sheet as a reduction in the book value of cap1ta1 assets.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method which means the. cost of the:asset is
divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged. to-expense each year
until the asset is fully depreciated. The District has assigned the useful llves llsted below to
capital assets.

it el

Buildings and structures 70 20 years
Improvements 1 20 years
Equipment .7 7-10 years
Vehicles o 5 years

A

Major outlays for capital assets and 1mprovements are capltahzed as projects are constructed.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs. that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capltallzed e

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets to be held-and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amount may not be recoverable.
When required, impairment losses on assets to be held and used are recognized based on the
fair value of the ‘asset.. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Net position -

AT
e

Equity in the financial statements is classified as net position and displayed in three
components as follows:

a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted - Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to these assets.

(Continued)

11



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

c. Unrestricted - Amounts not required to be reported in the other components of net
position.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is_the District’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed

Fund balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for govemmental ﬁm #is reported in
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on.the extent to’ hich the District is
bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose fo which amounts in the funds can be
spent. Fund balance is reported in five components: : onspendable restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned.

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in
form or are legally or contractually requlred to be mamtalned intact.

Restricted - Amounts constrained regardln use. from restrictions externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, ‘or laws or regulatlons of other governments or by
restrictions imposed by law through const1tut10nal provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts . constralned:ifregardlng use for specific purposes pursuant to
requirements imposed by formal action of the District’s highest level of decision making
authority. B b

Assigned- mAmounts constramed by the District’s intent to be used for specific purposes,
but are nelther restncted nor committed. The authority for assigning fund balance is
expressed b3 the Board of Trustees, District manager or their designee.

Unassigned --Amounts that have not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a
positive unassigned fund balance amount. Other governmental funds besides the general
fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance amount.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and
unassigned) as they are needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and
unassigned) are available for use it is the District’s policy to use committed resources first,
then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed.

(Continued)

12



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assessments

Assessments are levied at the discretion of the Board of Trustees. The assessments are
approved by a vote of the land owners pursuant to the requrrements of the California
Constitution Article XIII.C and XIIL.D. : -

Property taxes

Property taxes were levied January 1, 2015, and were payable- in two "i'nstallments on
December 10, 2015 and April 10, 2016. The County of San Joaqum,,bllls and collects
property taxes on behalf of the District.

Demand warrants i

The District is authorized under the California State Water Code to issue demand warrants.

Estimates :

The preparation of the basic financial statements» in""c‘onformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States-of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect certam reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. S

The state assistance recelvable in the amount of $213,758 as reported on the statement of net
position as of June 30, 2016 represents management’s estimates of reimbursable state
assistance for subvention eligible expenses relative to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015
and 2016. Although. considerable variability is inherent in this estimate, management
believes that the accruals for state assistance receivable are adequate.

Note B - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the District as of June 30, 2016, consist of the following:

Carrying Bank Fair
amount balance value
Deposits
Insured (FDIC) $ 22,108 $ 22,108
Investments in external investment pool
San Joaquin County Treasurer $§ 1,797,951 $ 1,797.951

(Continued)

13



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note B - Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

Cash on deposit in commercial accounts is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. Cash held by the San Joaquin County Treasury is pooled with other County
deposits for investment purposes by the County Treasurer in accordance with the investment
policy of the County Treasurer (see County Treasurer’s investment policy:at hitp:/www.
sjgov.org/treasurer/). The Pool has established a treasury oversight comrmttee to» monitor and
review the management of public funds maintained in the Pool. Partlmpants’ eqmty in the
investment pool is determined by the dollar amount of the pax‘nc1pant dep0s1ts adjusted for
withdrawals and distributed investment income. Investment income is prorated to individual
funds based on their average daily cash balances. The value of the. DlStnc ares in the Pool,
which may be withdrawn, is determined on an amortized cost:b is; which'i§ different than the
fair value of the District’s position in the Pool. The Dlstnct’s in estment in the Pool is unrated,
stated at amortized cost which approximates fair value, avallable upon demand and considered
cash equivalents. The District does not maintain a formal iny ent policy.

Note C - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended J une30,20

g Balance By Balance
_Z«.‘Iulz‘ "’T‘gl‘,ﬁ20:15 Additions Disposals June 30, 2016

Depreciable capital assets
©22,897 $ - 3 - 8§ 22,897

Buildings and structure
Improvements 46,634 - - 46,634
Equipment 10,970 - - 10,970
Vehicles . 27.319 - - 27,319
TotaLydeprecxable cap1ta1
; S¢t§7? 107,820 - - 107,820
Less accumulated deprecmtlon (64.438) (7.961) - (72,399)
Total depremable capital
assets, net 43,382 (7.961) - 35.421

Total capital assets,net § 43382 § (7961) $

§ 35421

Note D - State Assistance

The District is participating in the California Delta Levee Subventions Program (AB-360).
This program provides state financial assistance to local agencies responsible for
maintenance of nonproject levees.

14



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Note E - Insurance

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In
order to insure for risks of loss, the District purchases insurance through commercial
insurance carriers. As of June 30, 2016, the District’s insurance coverage includes general
liability insurance with liability limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and;$3,000,000 in the

aggregate and commercial excess coverage with liability limits of $3,000, 000 peroccurrence
and $3,000,000 in the aggregate. -

Note F - Governing Board

As of June 30, 2016, the three members of the District’s Board of Trustees were as follows:

Trustee Term exglres
Drew Meyers ‘ n December 2017
Michael Panzer s “.December 2019
Brett Tholborn T December 2019

15



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION




RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2016
General fund
Variance with
Budgeted final budget
amounts Actual . positive/
original/final amounts . - (negative)
Revenues . o >
Assessments $ 298,000 $ 306,280 $ 8,280
Property taxes 200,000 194,588 - (5,412)
Interest 5,000 8910 ; _ 3,910
Total revenues 503,000 -+ 509.778" 6.778
Expenditures . A
Engineering 86,500 .1247,873 (161,373)
Repairs and maintenance 27,500 " 117,201 (89,701)
Salaries and wages/auto allowance 60,328 69,740 (9,412)
Legal and accounting fees . 58,000 43,941 14,059
Levee repairs and maintenance -+ 125,000 25,319 99,681
Special projects G . 30,000 18,114 11,886
Weed control - . 15000 16,560 (1,560)
Insurance o 18,200 14,388 3,812
Public relations . N 9,000 9,373 (373)
Secretary fees R 8,000 7,620 380
Payroll taxes S 5,000 7,174 2,174
Trustee fees  *. = 6,000 4,600 1,400
County tax-administration - 3,000 3,674 (674)
County office expense 3,000 3,330 (330)
Office expensé. 2,750 862 1,888
Storage % - 800 (800)
Utilities ' 1,400 138 1,262
Election costs 3,000 - 3,000
Miscellaneous - 35 (35)
Total expenditures 461.678 590,742 (129,064)
Net change in fund balance 41,322 (80,964) (122,286)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,892,601 1,892,601 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1933923 § 1.811,637 § (122.286)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

16



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608

Notes to Required Supplemental Information

June 30, 2016

The District prepares a budget annually which is approved by the Board of Trustees setting forth
the contemplated fiscal requirements. The District’s budget is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The results of operations are presented in the budget to actual
schedule in accordance with the budgetary basis.

Reported budget amounts reflect the annual budget as originally adopted and the final adopted
amounts. There were no amendments to the budget during the year ended June 30, 2016. The
budget amounts are based on estimates of the District’s expenditures and the proposed means of
financing them. Actual expenditures for certain line items may vary 31gmﬁcantly ‘from the
budget due to timing of such expenditures. :

r.’\

17



, 2016

Board of Trustees

Reclamation District No. 1608

Post Office Box 4857

Stockton, California 95204

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each-major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Reclamation District No. 1608 for the year ended June
30, 2016. Professional standards require that we provide you w1th 1nformat10n about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards; as- well. as certain information
related to planned scope and timing of our audit. We have’ commumcated such information to
you. Professional standards also require that we commumcate to you ‘the following information
related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices ~

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Reclamation District No. 1608 are described in Note A
to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during June 30, 2016. We noted no transactions entered into
by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
All significant transact,ion,s‘i}iave bgen’recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate
affecting the financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of the state assistance receivable in the amount of $213,758 as
reported on the statement of net position as of June 30, 2016, is based on calculations and
assessments by the District’s engineers of the proceeds to be received for subvention
eligible expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2016.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
the financial statement users. We did not identify any sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. We did not identify any material misstatements during the
course of our audit. R

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a ﬁnanmal accountmg, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report* that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit. :

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from manégement that are included in the
management representation letter dated October 26, 2016:

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements,
our professional standards'require' the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has-all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants

Other Audit F inding;s' or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Governmental Funds, which is required supplementary
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the



information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District
No. 1608 and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Very truly yours,

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN, INC.
Certified Public Accountants



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608
POST OFFICE BOX 4857
STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 95204

October 26, 2016

Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc.
3520 Brookside Road, Suite 141
Stockton, California 95219

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Reclamation District No. 1608 (the District), which comprise the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of
June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the
financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the
omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could
be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 25, 2016, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated June 13, 2016, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the
supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S
GAAP and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the
primary government and all component units required by generally accepted accounting
principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.



9.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those valued at
fair value, are reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses,
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or
assessments.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the District is contingently liable, if any,
have been properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

10.

11.

12.

13.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other
matters and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding
sources.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the District and
involves:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.



14.

15.

16.

17.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
District’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators,
or others.

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects
should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the District’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

Government - Specific

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

The District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, liabilities, or equity.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts
and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we
believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant
to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged
with governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other
financial data significant to the audit objectives.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the
financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related
notes. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including
that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an
individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge,
or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept
responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

The District has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The District has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an
equity interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related
organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 34.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for
presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are
presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted)
and classifications of 